
UN ITED  ST A T E S O F A M ER IC A 


B E FO R E  TH E NATIO NAL LA BOR  R ELA TIO N S B O A R D 


R EG IO N  

19


TH E BO EIN G  C O M PA N Y 


and


C ase 19-C A -32431


IN TER N A TIO N A L A SSO C IA TIO N  OF


M A C H IN ISTS A N D  A E R O SPA C E  W O R K E R S


D ISTR IC T LO D G E 751, affiliated 

w ith


IN TER N A TIO N A L A SSO C IA TIO N  

OF


M A C H IN ISTS A N D  A E R O SPA C E  W O R K E R S


C O M PLA IN T A N D  N O TIC E O F H EA R IN G 


International 

A ssociation of M achinists and A erospace W orkers D istrict


L odge N o. 751 ("Local 751" or the "U nion"), affiliated w ith International A ssociation of


M achinists and A erospace W orkers ("IAM "),
 has charged
 in C ase 19-C A -32431
 that


T he B oeing C om pany ("R espondent" or "B oeing"), has been engaging in unfair labor


practices as s et forth in the N ational L abor R elations A ct (the "A ct"), 29 U.S.C . § 151 et


seq .


B ased  thereon,
 the
 A cting
 G eneral
 C ounsel  of
 the  N ational
 L abor


R elations B oard (the "B oard"), by the undersigned, 

pursuant to § 10(b) of the A ct and


§ 102.15 of the B oard's R ules and R egulations, issues this C om plaint and N otice of


H earing and alleges as follow s:


1


T he C harge w as filed by the U nion on M arch 26, 2010, a nd w as served on


R espondent by regular m ail on or about M arch 29, 2010.
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2.


(a)
 R espondent, a State of D elaw are corporation w ith its headquarters


in  C hicago, Illinois,  m anufactures
 and produces
 m ilitary and com m ercial  aircraft at


various facilities throughout the U nited 

States, including in E verett, W ashington (the


"facility"), and others in the Seattle, W ashington, and Portland,  O regon, m etropolitan


areas.


(b)  R espondent,  during  the  past tw elve  m onths,  w hich  period  is


representative of all m aterial tim es, in conducting  its business operations described


above in paragraph 2(a), derived gross 

revenues in excess of $500,000.


(c)
 R espondent,  during  the  past tw elve  m onths,  w hich  period
 is


representative of all m aterial tim es, in conducting  its business operations described


above 

in paragraph 

2(a), both sold and shipped 

from , 

and purchased 

and received 

at,


the facility goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly to and from  points outside the


State of W ashington.


(d)  R espondent has been a t all m aterial tim es an em ployer engaged in


com m erce w ithin the m eaning of §§ 2(2), (6) and (7) of the A ct.


3.


T he U nion is, and has been at all m aterial tim es, a labor organization


w ithin the m eaning of § 2(5) of the A ct.


4.


A t all m aterial tim es the follow ing individuals held the positions set forth


opposite their respective
 nam es and have been supervisors w ithin the m eaning  of
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§ 2(11)  of the 

A ct, and/or agents w ithin 

the m eaning of § 2(13) 

of the A ct, acting on


behalf of R espondent:


Jim  A lbaugh


- Executive V ice President, 

B oeing; President


and C EO  of Integrated D efense System s (until


late A ugust 2009); C EO , 

B oeing C om m ercial


A irplanes (as of 

late A ugust 2009)


Scott C arson
 - Executive V ice President, 

B oeing; C EO , Boeing


C om m ercial A irplanes (until 

late A ugust 2009)


R ay C onner


- V ice President and G eneral M anager of Supply


C hain M anagem ent and O perations, Boeing


C om m ercial A irplanes


Scott Fancher
 - V ice President and 

G eneral M anager of the 787


Program 


Fred K iga


- V ice President, G overnm ent and C om m unity


R elations


D oug K ight  -
 V ice President, H um an R esources, B oeing


C om m ercial 

A irplanes


Jim  M cN erney
 - President, C hairm an, and C EO 


Jim  Proulx


- B oeing spokesm an


Pat Shanahan  -
 V ice President and G eneral M anager of


A irplane 

Program s


G ene W oloshyn  - V ice President, Em ployee R elations


5.


(a)  T hose em ployees of R espondent enum erated in Section 1.1(a) of


the collective bargaining agreem ent described 

below  in paragraph 5(c), including, 

inter


alia, all production and 

m aintenance em ployees in W ashington State, constitute 

a unit


appropriate for 

the purposes of collective 

bargaining w ithin the 

m eaning of § 9(b) of the


A ct (the "Puget 

Sound U nit").


(b)
 T hose em ployees of R espondent 

enum erated in Section 1.1(c) 

of


the collective bargaining 

agreem ent described 

below  in paragraph 

5(c), including, inter
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alia, all production 

and m aintenance em ployees in 

the Portland, O regon area, 

constitute


a unit appropriate 

for the purposes 

of collective 

bargaining w ithin 

the m eaning of § 9(b)


of the A ct 

(the "Portland 

U nit").


(c)  Since at least 1975 

and at all m aterial tim es, the IAM  has been 

the


designated exclusive 

collective bargaining 

representative of the 

Puget Sound U nit and


the Portland U nit 

(collectively, the "U nit") 

and recognized as such 

representative by


R espondent.  This recognition has 

been em bodied in successive collective-bargaining


agreem ents,  the  m ost  recent
 of w hich  is  effective  from   N ovem ber
 2,  2008,  to


Septem ber 8, 2012.


(d)  Since 1975, during the course of the parties' collective-bargaining


relationship, the IAM  engaged in strikes in 1977, 1989, 1995, 2005, 

and 2008.


6.


On or about the dates and by the m anner noted below , R espondent m ade


coercive statem ents to its em ployees that it w ould rem ove or had rem oved w ork from 


the  U nit because  em ployees  had  struck and R espondent  threatened  or  im pliedly


threatened that the U nit w ould lose additional 

w ork in the event of future strikes:


(a)  O ctober 21, 2009, by M cN erney in a quarterly earnings conference


call that w as posted on B oeing's intranet w ebsite for all em ployees and reported in the


Seattle Post Intelligencer A erospace N ew s and quoted in the Seattle Tim es, m ade an


extended
 statem ent  regarding  "diversifying
 [R espondent's]  labor  pool
 and  labor


relationship," and m oving the 787 D ream liner w ork to South 

C arolina due to "strikes


happening every three to four years in 

Puget Sound."
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(b)
 O ctober 28, 2009, based on its O ctober 28, 2009, m em orandum 


entitled 787 Second 

Line, 

Q uestions 

and A nsw ers 

for M anagers," 

inform ed 

em ployees,


am ong other things, that its decision to locate the second 787 D ream liner line in South


C arolina w as m ade in order to reduce R espondent's vulnerability to delivery disruptions


caused by w ork stoppages.


(c)  D ecem ber 

7, 2009, by C onner and ProuIx in an article appearing in


the Seattle T im es, attributed R espondent's 787 D ream liner production decision to use a


"dual-sourcing" system  and to contract w ith separate suppliers for the South C arolina


line to past U nit strikes.


(d)
 D ecem ber 8, 2009, by C onner in an article appearing in the Puget


Sound B usiness Journal, attributed R espondent's 

787 D ream liner production decision


to use a "dual-sourcing" system  and to contract w ith separate suppliers for the South


C arolina line to past U nit strikes.


(e)
 M arch 2, 2010, by A lbaugh in a video-taped interview  w ith a Seattle


Tim es reporter, stated that R espondent decided to locate its 787 D ream liner second line


in South C arolina because of past U nit strikes, and threatened the loss of future U nit


w ork opportunities because of such strikes.


7.


(a)


In or about 

O ctober 

2009, 

on a date 

better 

know n 

to R espondent,


but no later than O ctober 28, 2009, R espondent decided to transfer its second 787


D ream liner production line of 3 planes per m onth from  the U nit to its non-union site in


N orth C harleston, South C arolina.
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(b)
 R espondent e ngaged in the 

conduct described above in paragraph


7(a) because 

the U nit em ployees 

assisted and/or supported the U nion by, inter alia,


engaging in the protected, concerted activity of law ful strikes and to discourage these


and/or 

other em ployees 

from 


engaging


in  these 

or other 

union
 and/or protected,


concerted activities.


(c)
 R espondent's


conduct


described


above


in
 paragraph


7(a),


com bined  w ith  the  conduct  described  above  in  paragraph  6,  is  also  inherently


destructive of the rights guaranteed em ployees by § 7 of the A ct.


8.


(a)
 In or about 

O ctober 

2009, on a date better 

know n 

to R espondent,


but no later than D ecem ber 3, 2009, R espondent decided to transfer a sourcing supply


program  for its 787 D ream liner production line from  the U nit to its non-union facility in


N orth C harleston, South C arolina, or to subcontractors.


(b)  R espondent e ngaged in the conduct described above in paragraph


8(a) because 

the U nit em ployees 

assisted 

and/or 

supported 

the U nion 

by, inter 

alia,


engaging in the protected, concerted activity of law ful strikes and to discourage these


and/or other em ployees  from   engaging
 in  these or other union and/or protected,


concerted activities.


(c)
 R espondent's


conduct


described


above


in
 paragraph


8(a),


com bined w ith the conduct described above in paragraphs 6 and 7(a), is also inherently


destructive of the rights guaranteed 

em ployees by § 7 of the A ct.
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9.


By the conduct described above in paragraph 

6, R espondent has been


interfering  w ith,  restraining,
 and  coercing  em ployees  in  the
 exercise  of the rights


guaranteed in § 7 of the 

A ct in violation of § 8(a)(1) 

of the A ct.


10.


By the conduct described above in paragraphs 7 and 8, R espondent has


been discrim inating in regard to the hire or tenure or term s or conditions of em ploym ent


of its em ployees, thereby discouraging m em bership in a labor organization in violation


of §§ 8(a)(3) and 

(1) of the A ct.


11.


By the conduct described above in paragraphs 6 through 10, R espondent


has engaged in unfair labor practices affecting com m erce w ithin the m eaning of §§ 2(6)


and (7) of the A ct.


12.


A s part of the rem edy for the unfair labor practices alleged herein, the


A cting G eneral C ounsel seeks an O rder requiring either that one of the high level


officials of R espondent alleged to have com m itted the violations enum erated above in


paragraph 6 read, or that a designated B oard agent read in the presence of a high level


B oeing official,  any notice that issues in this m atter, and requiring R espondent to


broadcast such reading on R espondent's intranet to all em ployees.


13.


(a)  A s part of the rem edy for the unfair labor practices alleged above in


paragraphs 7 and 8, the A cting G eneral C ounsel seeks an O rder requiring R espondent
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to have 

the U nit operate 

its second 

line of 787 

D ream liner 

aircraft assem bly 

production


in the State of W ashington, utilizing supply lines m aintained by the U nit in the Seattle,


W ashington, 

and Portland, 

O regon, area 

facilities.


(b)  O ther than


as  set forth  in  paragraph


13(a)  above,
 the
 relief


requested by 

the A cting G eneral C ounsel 

does not seek to prohibit 

R espondent from 


m aking
 non-discrim inatory


decisions 

w ith respect to w here w ork will be perform ed,


including 

non-discrim inatory 

decisions 

w ith respect 

to w ork at its N orth C harleston,


South C arolina, facility.


A N SW ER  R EQ UIR EM EN T


R espondent is notified  that, pursuant 

to §§ 102.20 and  102.21
 of the


B oard's R ules and R egulations, it m ust file an answ er to this C om plaint.  T he answ er


m ust be received by this office on or before M ay 4, 2011, or postm arked on or


before M ay 3, 20111,
 U nless filed electronically in a pdf form at, R espondent should file


an original and four copies of the answ er w ith this office and serve a copy of the answ er


on each of the 

other parties.


A n answ er m ay also be filed electronically by using the E-Filing system  on


the A gency's w ebsite.
 In order to file an answ er electronically, access the 

A gency's


w ebsite at w w w .nirb.cjov, click on F ile C ase D ocum ents, enter the  N LRB C ase


N um ber, and follow  the detailed
 instructions.  T he responsibility for the receipt and


usability of the answ er rests exclusively upon the sender.


U nless notification on the


A gency's
 w ebsite  inform s  users  that
 the  A gency's  E-Filing  system   is
 officially


determ ined to be in technical failure because 

it is unable to receive docum ents for a


continuous period of m ore than 2 hours after 12:00 noon (E astern Tim e) on the due
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http://www.nirb.cjov,


date for filing, 

a failure to tim ely file the answ er will 

not be excused on 

the basis that the


transm ission could 

not be accom plished because 

the A gency's w ebsite w as off-line or


unavailable for 

som e other reason. T he 

B oard's R ules and R egulations 

require that an


answ er be signed by 

counsel or non-attorney representative 

for represented parties or


by the party if not represented.
 See § 102.21.  If the answ er being filed electronically is


a pdf docum ent containing the required 

signature, no paper copies of the 

docum ent


need to be transm itted to the R egional Office.  H ow ever, if the electronic version of an


answ er to a com plaint is not a pdf file containing the required signature, then the E-filing


rules require that such answ er containing the required signature be subm itted to the


R egional Office by traditional m eans w ithin three (3) business days after the date of


electronic filing.


Service of the answ er on each of the other parties m ust b e accom plished


in  conform ance  w ith  the  requirem ents  of  § 102.114  of  the  B oard's  R ules  and


R egulations.  T he answ er m ay not be filed by facsim ile transm ission.  If no answ er is


filed or if an answ er is filed untim ely, the B oard m ay find, pursuant to M otion for D efault


Judgm ent, that the allegations 

in this C om plaint are true.


N O TIC E OF H EARING 


PLEA SE TA K E NO TICE TH A T on 

the 14 th day of June, 2011, at 9:00


a.m .,  in  Jam es C.  S and
 H earing  R oom , 2966 Jackson
 Federal  B uilding,  915


Second  A venue,
 S eattle, W ashington,  and
 on  consecutive  days thereafter until


concluded, a hearing will be conducted  before 

an A dm inistrative  Law  Judge of the


N ational Labor R elations 

B oard.  A t the hearing, R espondent 

and any other party to this


proceeding have the right to appear 

and present testim ony regarding the allegations 

in
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this com plaint.


T he procedures 

to be follow ed


at the 

hearing are 

described in 

the


attached Form  N LR B -4668. 

T he procedure 

to request a postponem ent 

of the hearing is


described 

in the attached 

Form  N LR B -4338.


DATED at 

Seattle, W ashington, 

this 2 0 th  day 

of A pril, 

2011.


R ichard L. A hearn, R egional D irector


N ational Labor R elations 

B oard, R egion 19


2948 Jackson Federal 

Building


915 Second A venue


Seattle, W ashington  98174-1078
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